



- Electronic copy is controlled under document control procedure. Hard copy is uncontrolled & under responsibility of beholder.
- It is allowed ONLY to access and keep this document with who issued, who is responsible and to whom it is applicable.
- Information security code:
 ☑Open □ Shared Confidential □ Shared Sensitive □ Shared Secret
- النسخة الإلكترونية هي النسخة المضبوطة وفق إجراء ضبط الوثائق. النسخ الورقية غير مضبوطة وتقع على مسؤولية حاملها.
- يسمح بالوصول وبالاحتفاظ بهذه الوثيقة مع مصدرها أو مع المسؤول عن تطبيقها أو مع المطبق عليهم.

تصنيف امن المعلومات:

🗹 بيانات مفتوحة 🛛 مشارك –خاص 🗆 مشارك –حساس 🗋 مشارك –سري

Manual for Clinical Governance Framework

Version 1.1

Issue date: 18/12/2024 **Effective date:** 18/02/2025

Health Policies and Standards Department

Health Regulation Sector (2024)





ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Health Policy and Standards Department (HPSD) developed this Standard in collaboration with Subject Matter Experts and would like to acknowledge and thank these health professionals for their dedication toward improving quality and safety of healthcare services in the Emirate of Dubai.

Health Regulation Sector

Dubai Health Authority

All rights [©] reserved by the Dubai Health Authority @ 2024. The contents of this document shall not be copied or reproduced in any form without prior written permission from the Authority.





TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT			
INTRODUCTION			
DEFINITIONS			
ABBREVIATIONS			
1.	BACKGROUND		
2.	SCOPE		
3.	PURPOSE		
4.	APPLICABILITY		
5.	CHAPTER ONE: CLINICAL LEADERSHIP		
6.	CHAPTER TWO: CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS		
7.	CHAPTER THREE: CLINICAL AUDIT		
8.	CHAPTER FOUR: TRAINING AND EDUCATION		
9.	CHAPTER FIVE: STAFFING AND STAFF MANAGEMENT		
10.	CHAPTER SIX: RISK MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING		
11.	CHAPTER SEVEN: PATIENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVMENT		
12.	CHAPTER EIGHT: SELF ASSESSMENTS		
REF	REFERENCES		





INTRODUCTION

The Health Regulation Sector (HRS) plays a key role in regulating the health sector. HRS is mandated by the Dubai Health Authority (DHA) Law No. (6) of the year (2018) with its amendments pertaining to DHA, to undertake several functions including but not limited to:

- Developing regulation, policy, standards, guidelines to improve quality and patient safety and promote the growth and development of the health sector;
- Licensure and inspection of health facilities as well as healthcare professionals and ensuring compliance to best practice;
- Managing patient complaints and assuring patient and physician rights are upheld;
- Governing the use of narcotics, controlled and semi-controlled medications;
- Strengthening health tourism and assuring ongoing growth; and
- Assuring management of health informatics, e-health and promoting innovation.

The Manual for Clinical Governance Framework aims to fulfill the following overarching Dubai

Health Sector Strategy 2026:

- Pioneering Human-centered health system to promote trust, safety, quality and care for patients and their families.
- Make Dubai a lighthouse for healthcare governance, integration and regulation.
- Leading global efforts to combat epidemics and infectious diseases and prepare for disasters.
- Pioneering prevention efforts against non-communicable diseases.
- Become a global digital health hub.





- Foster healthcare education, research and innovation.
- Strengthening the economic contribution of the health sector, including health tourism to

support Dubai economy.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY





The application of Clinical Governance framework in Health facilities is an important factor in achieving and implementing high quality care delivered to patients in Dubai. In this way, DHA can ensure that services provided are safe, high quality and effective, which creates an environment of trust between the patient and the system

It is important for DHA to define all the qualities of the clinical governance frame work to guarantee proper application. Therefore, this manual establishes the characteristics and set of duties on health facilities operating in Dubai.





DEFINITIONS

Adverse Events: includes any unanticipated, undesirable or potentially dangerous occurrence within the health facility.

Clinical Audit: A quality improvement process that seeks to improve patient care and outcomes through systematic review of care against explicit criteria and the implementation of change.

Clinical Effectiveness: Involves ensuring that patients receive the most appropriate care and treatment, based on the best available evidence.

Clinical Governance: is the system by which the health facilities, managers and clinicians share responsibility and are held accountable for patient care, through minimizing of risks and continuous monitoring and improvement of clinical and nonclinical services.

Conflict of Interest: shall refer to the conflict between an external entity's private interests and its official responsibility toward the health facility being grandfathered.

Failure Mode and Effects Analysis (FMEA) is a proactive risk assessment tool that evaluates a process to identify potential failures and their effects. A method that helps health care organizations identify and eliminate process failures for the purpose of preventing adverse events.

Focused Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE): is a process whereby the medical staff evaluates the privilege-specific competence of the practitioner that lacks documented evidence of competently performing the requested privilege(s) at the organization.

Grandfathering: An external competent entity which oversees and supports a health facility to meet the requirements for clinical governance.

Mortality: Is the in-hospital deaths for patients under the care of a defined speciality.





Near Miss (or close call): is a patient safety event that did not reach the patient.

Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE): is a summary of ongoing data collected for the purpose of assessing a practitioner's clinical competence and professional behaviour, professional growth and clinical results in DHA licensed health facilities. The information gathered during the process is factored into decisions to maintain, revise, or revoke existing privilege(s) prior to or at the end of the privilege-renewal cycle.

Risk Management: Coordinated activities that aim to identify, control and minimise threats within the health facility which will enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of services provided to the patient.

Risk Matrix: A tool that helps evaluate and rank the level of risk associated with deficiencies or noncompliance issues that are identified during surveys or reviews of health care organizations. The risk matrix is part of the Survey Analysis for Evaluating Risk (SAFER) process, which is a scoring approach that aims to improve patient safety and quality of care.

Root Cause Analysis (RCA): a systematic and comprehensive reactive methodology for identifying the gaps in hospital systems and processes of care that may not be immediately apparent and which may have contributed to a sentinel event or near miss of a serious incident

Sentinel Event (SE): is a type of serious incident that is wholly preventable and has caused serious harm to, or death of a patient, and not primarily related to the natural course of the patient's illness or underlying condition. A patient safety event can be, but is not limited to, the result of a defective system or process design, a system breakdown, equipment failure, or human error.





ABBREVIATIONS

AE	:	Adverse Events
CG	:	Clinical Governance
DHA	:	Dubai Health Authority
FPPE	:	Focus Professional Practice Evaluation Process
FMEA	:	Failure Mode and Effects Analysis
HRS	:	Health Regulation Sector
HP	:	Healthcare Professionals
MD	:	Medical Director
NM	:	Near Miss
OPPE	:	Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation
PPI	:	Patient and public involvement
PQR	:	Unified Professional Qualification Requirements
SE	:	Sentinel Event





1. BACKGROUND

Clinical Governance is a framework where health facilities are held accountable for the continuous improvement of the quality of services and the high standards of care, to establish a flourishing clinical environment. It's often thought of in terms of the seven pillars of clinical governance clinical effectiveness, risk management, patient experience and involvement, communication, resource effectiveness, strategic effectiveness, and learning effectiveness. The impact of clinical governance is positive, both on health facilities and healthcare professionals. Clinical governance creates a sense of transparency between the facility and the patient, which builds on trust and positive patient care outcomes. In terms of healthcare professionals, the constant assessment of clinical practices and techniques allows healthcare professionals to regularly build on their skills and adopt new techniques for better care provision.

2. SCOPE

2.1. Clinical Governance (CG) framework implementation.

3. PURPOSE

- 3.1. To set the framework for CG for Health Facilities under the jurisdiction of Dubai Health Authority (DHA).
- 3.2. To ensure health facilities implement CG.
- 3.3. To enhance the quality and safety of care provided in all DHA licensed health facilities.

4. APPLICABILITY

4.1. The below listed DHA licensed health facilities and healthcare professionals working in

them:





- 4.1.1. Hospitals
- 4.1.2. Day Surgical Centres

5. CHAPTER ONE: CLINICAL LEADERSHIP

- 5.1. Effective clinical governance requires strong leadership from healthcare professionals who are responsible for ensuring that care is safe, effective, and patient-centred. This includes setting the strategic direction for clinical services, ensuring compliance with regulations and standards, and managing risk.
- 5.2. All Health Facilities should have in place a CG system to assure the continuous improvement of quality and patient safety.
 - 5.2.1. The clinical governance system should include a designated CG Lead who is responsible to oversee and report on CG.
 - 5.2.2. The clinical governance lead should be a member of the higher leadership team, with an authority and accountability duty, for example the Medical Director (MD).
 - 5.2.3. Clinical Governance Committee (or equivalent) can include and is not limited to the leads of the below committees/groups:
 - a. Mortality and Morbidity
 - b. Sentinel Events
 - c. Quality and Safety
 - d. Audit & Effectiveness
 - e. Infection Prevention and Control
 - f. Patient Experience & Engagement





- g. Ethical Committee
- h. Health Records
- i. Drug & Therapeutics
- j. Patient Safety Review
- 5.2.4. Resources for the CG lead should be made available to assure identification and improvement of quality and patient safety.
- 5.2.5. The committee should be accountable to implement CG, and the continuous improvement of patient services and clinical outcomes.
- 5.2.6. The committee should meet on a monthly basis and regularly monitor, oversee and document all areas related to CG in the health facilities as per DHA Policy.
- 5.2.7. Committee members should undergo ongoing education and training to improve and implement appropriate measures for CG.
- 5.3. Clinical leaders should have the following competencies:
 - 5.3.1. Clinical Expertise.
 - a. Clinical leaders should have a deep understanding of clinical practice and the healthcare environment in which they work, through qualifications and/or experience.
 - 5.3.2. Strategic Thinking.
 - a. Clinical leaders need to be able to think strategically about the long-term goals of their organization and how to achieve them.





- b. Clinical leaders require the ability to analyse data, identify trends, and make decisions based on evidence and best practice.
- 5.3.3. Collaborative Skills.
 - a. Clinical leaders should be able to work collaboratively with other healthcare professionals, patients, and stakeholders.
 - b. Clinical leaders require the ability to build relationships, communicate effectively, and work towards common goals.
- 5.3.4. Risk Management.
 - a. Clinical leaders need to be able to identify and manage risks that could potentially harm patients, health workers, or the organization.
 - b. Clinical leaders require the ability to conduct risk assessments, develop risk management strategies, and monitor and review risks regularly.
- 5.3.5. Quality Improvement
 - a. Clinical leaders should be committed to continuous quality improvement, regularly reviewing and evaluating clinical care and services to identify areas for improvement.
- 5.3.6. Patient Centeredness
 - a. Clinical leaders should be committed to providing patient-centred care, ensuring that patients are involved in decision-making (such as the plan of care, initial assessments, discharge planning etc.) and that services are responsive to patient needs.





- b. Patient experience surveys and patient satisfaction surveys have to be conducted to ensure that the services are responsive to patient needs.
- 5.3.7. Ethical and Professional Conduct.
 - a. Clinical leaders should uphold ethical and professional standards in their practice, ensuring that care is provided with integrity, respect, and compassion.
- 5.4. Health Facilities with less than twenty (20) clinical and allied health staff may opt to adopt grandfathering approach for clinical governance.
 - 5.4.1. A Memorandum of Understanding should be in place between the health facility and the external grandfathering health entity.
 - 5.4.2. The grandfathering entity must have sufficient and competent healthcare professionals to assist in clinical governance.
 - 5.4.3. Both parties should put in place measures to avoid conflict of interest.

6. CHAPTER TWO: CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS

- 6.1. Clinical effectiveness is a measure of the degree of which a specific intervention works. It ensures that any practice conducted in a clinical setting is designed to provide the best results for the patient.
- 6.2. Clinical effectiveness is enhanced through applying evidence-based practice approach in managing patients, improving the level of care provided to patients by exploring new forms of research to explore and implement the evidences, changing clinical practice and developing new protocols and guidelines.





- 6.3. Health facilities are required to implement the below to achieve clinical effectiveness within CG framework and through multidisciplinary teamwork to achieve the best outcomes:
 - 6.3.1. Evidence-based practice
 - a. Adoption of evidence-based practice to ensure that patients receive the most appropriate care and treatment based on the best available evidence.
 - b. Keeping up-to-date with the latest research, guidelines, and best practice, and using this information to inform clinical decision-making.
 - 6.3.2. Clinical Guidelines
 - a. Prioritising implementation of DHA published clinical guidelines.
 - Implementing evidence-based recommendations for clinical practice, developed by specialized and well-established organizations.
 - c. Ensuring that their adoption standardizes and promotes best practices as well as ensures that care is based on the best available evidence.
 - 6.3.3. Quality Improvement
 - a. Commitment to continuous quality improvement, regularly reviewing and evaluating clinical care and services to identify areas of risk and improvement.
 - b. Monitoring and reviewing clinical outcomes, using data to identify trends, implementing strategies to improve the safety and quality of care delivery continuously implementing strategies to improve patient care and service delivery.





- c. Continuously implementing strategies to improve patient care and service delivery.
- 6.3.4. Patient-centred care
 - a. Adopting a patient-centred approach to care, ensuring that care is tailored to the individual needs and preferences of each patient and/or family member.
 - Involvement of patients and/or family member in decision-making, listening to their concerns, and ensuring that care is responsive to their needs.
- 6.3.5. Clinical audit
 - a. Review and evaluation of clinical care and services to identify areas for improvement.
 - Identify areas where care is not meeting best practice standards, and inform quality improvement initiatives.
- 6.3.6. Education and Training
 - a. Ongoing education and training to ensure that clinicians are up-to-date with the latest evidence, technologies, and best practices
 - b. Providing opportunities for professional development, continuing education, and skills training.
 - c. Encouraging journal clubs, seminars, scientific meeting and case discussion.
- 6.3.7. Credentialing and scope of clinical practice





- a. Define the scope of clinical practice for healthcare professionals through outlining the specific procedures and techniques that they are authorised to perform as well as any limitations on their practice.
- b. Monitor the practices of healthcare professionals to ensure that they are operating within their designated scope of clinical practice scope.
- c. Review the scope of clinical practice of clinicians periodically and whenever a new clinical service, procedure or technology is introduced or substantially altered.

7. CHAPTER THREE: CLINICAL AUDIT

- 7.1. The purpose of clinical auditing is to consistently monitor clinical practice and identify opportunities for improvement in the clinical field. The data collected from clinical audit is important to develop patient care, help professional development, form a recognition of accountability and make sure healthcare resources are being used effectively.
- 7.2. Clinical audit should provide a systematic process for monitoring and evaluating the quality of clinical care and services.
- 7.3. Refer and adhere to the Standards for Conducting Clinical Audit in Health Facilities for criteria and process of clinical audits.

8. CHAPTER FOUR: TRAINING AND EDUCATION

8.1. Health care providers should never stop learning. It is vital that staff in the clinical field are always updated and continue learning to professionally develop and stay up to date.





Developing their skills will enable them to be more efficient in doing their jobs. However, support must be available from the facility to facilitate their professional development.

- 8.2. Training and education can involve attending courses and conferences (referred as Continuous Professional Development), Identifying and discussing weaknesses, conducting relevant exams and having opportunities for professional development.
- 8.3. To achieve an effective education and training pillar, health facilities should ensure:
 - 8.3.1. Continuous professional development for all staff.
 - a. Ensuring the ongoing education and training for healthcare professionals based on the facility scope.
 - 8.3.2. Providing regular opportunities for professional development, including training on new techniques, technologies, and best practices in clinical care.
 - a. Aligning the HP training requirements to satisfy the CME requirement mandated in the Professionals Qualification Requirements (PQR).
 - 8.3.3. Training on clinical governance principles
 - a. Providing training on the principles and concepts of clinical governance for all staff members, not just clinical staff of the facility.
 - b. Principles of Clinical Governance include:
 - i. <u>Accountability</u>: All healthcare professionals and organizations are accountable for maintaining and improving care standards.
 - ii. <u>Continuous Improvement</u>: Healthcare services must regularly evaluate and enhance their practices to improve outcomes.





- iii. <u>Patient-Centered Care</u>: Services must focus on meeting the needs and expectations of patients and their families.
- iv. <u>Transparency</u>: Open communication about successes, challenges, and risks in care delivery is essential.
- v. <u>Teamwork</u>: Collaboration between professionals, departments, and organizations is crucial for effective clinical governance.
- c. Education and training on the key components of clinical governance, including risk management, quality improvement, clinical audit, and patient and public involvement.
- 8.3.4. Specialized training
 - a. Specialized training for staff members who are responsible for implementing clinical governance initiatives.
 - Training on specific skills and competencies, such as risk assessment, data analysis, and quality improvement methodologies.
 - ii. Effective clinical governance requires training on data analysis and reporting.
- 8.3.5. Professional Practice Evaluation
 - a. The health facility shall perform Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE). The information gathered during the evaluation is factored into decisions to maintain, revise, or revoke existing privilege(s). The Medical





Director /Assigned Designee is responsible for the integration of the data and information on medical staff and taking appropriate actions.

b. Focus Professional Practice Evaluation Process (FPPE) should be performed by a competent professional practice evaluation committee. The evaluation should be performed in a manner that is objective, equitable and consistent. DHA will conduct the FPPE as needed based on their internal process.

9. CHAPTER FIVE: STAFFING AND STAFF MANAGEMENT

- 9.1. Recruiting qualified health care professionals who are appropriate for the job is essential for ensuring high-quality, patient-centred care. Staff management requires maintaining a professional relationship, defining their roles, responsibilities and scope of practice, and addressing underperformance.
- 9.2. The health facilities should have in place comprehensive approaches and plans for recruiting and allocating competent and qualified healthcare professionals as per the Professional Qualification Requirement (PQR).
- 9.3. The health facilities should ensure all HP have the appropriate qualifications, knowledge and experience to provide safe, high-quality care consistent with patient needs and ongoing professional development to maintain their skills.
- 9.4. Staffing levels should not compromise patient safety and provision of high quality of care.

10. CHAPTER SIX: RISK MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING

10.1. Risk management is an essential component of effective CG, helping healthcare organizations identify, assess, and manage risks to patient safety and quality of care. The





system should create a responsible, blame free culture of learning where the staff feel safe and comfortable enough to report mistakes and incidents.

- 10.2. To achieve effective risk management within a CG framework the health facilities should adopt:
 - 10.2.1. Risk assessment
 - Ensuring the implementation of a systematic process for identifying and assessing risks to patient safety and quality of care.
 - Identifying, assessing, and mitigating risks in clinical and organizational practices.
 - c. Developing contingency plans for potential adverse events.
 - 10.2.2. Conducting risk assessments on a regular basis by using standardized risk assessment tools, such as Risk Matrix or FMEA, and involving a range of stakeholders in the risk assessment process.
 - 10.2.3. Risk mitigation strategies
 - a. Development and implementation of risk mitigation strategies.
 - b. Developing and implementing policies and procedures to address identified

risks and ensure that strategies are reviewed and updated on a regular basis.

- 10.2.4. Reporting and learning from incidents
 - a. Providing a culture of reporting and learning from incidents.
 - b. Encouraging staff to report incidents, near misses (NM) and adverse events
 - (AE) while also using this information to identify areas for improvement and





implement changes to prevent future incidents (refer to DHA sentinel event

reporting policy).

10.2.5. Patient safety

- a. Monitoring and minimizing risks to patients.
- b. Reporting and learning from incidents, near misses, and errors.
- c. Implementing policies like infection control and medication safety.

10.2.6. Clinical Effectiveness

- a. Ensuring care is evidence-based and up-to-date.
- Using clinical guidelines, audits, and outcome measures to assess effectiveness.
- 10.2.7. Quality improvement initiatives
 - a. Commitment to continuous quality improvement through review and

evaluation of clinical care and services to identify areas for improvement and

implement quality initiatives to address these.

- 10.2.8. Staff training and education
 - a. Ongoing staff training and education to ensure that all staff are aware of the risks associated with clinical care and services, and have the knowledge and skills to manage these risks effectively.
 - Ensuring healthcare staff are adequately trained, supported, and wellsupervised.
 - c. Promoting a culture of learning and professional development.

10.2.9. Regular monitoring and evaluation





- a. Regular monitoring and evaluation of risk management strategies and processes to ensure that they are effective in managing risks to patient safety and quality of care.
- Reviewing incident reports, monitoring the effectiveness of risk mitigation strategies, and implementing changes as needed.
- 10.2.10. Education and Training
 - a. Encouraging ongoing learning and skills enhancement for healthcare professionals.
 - b. Keeping staff updated on new guidelines, technologies, and practices.
- 10.2.11. Clinical Audit
 - a. Regularly reviewing practices to ensure they meet required standards.
 - b. Using audit results to implement improvements.
- 10.2.12. Patient and Public Involvement
 - a. Involving patients in decision-making and service evaluation.
 - b. Encouraging feedback through surveys, focus groups, and complaints systems.
- 10.2.13. Information Management
 - a. Ensuring accurate, timely, and secure documentation of patient information.
 - b. Using data to monitor performance and improve care delivery.
- 10.2.14. The healthcare organisations shall provide preliminary report within seventy-two
 - (72) hours from date of Notification and by using the Preliminary report of SE.





- 10.2.15. The healthcare organisations shall conduct a comprehensive investigation using RCA method and issue the final report with forty-five (45) days calendar days from the date of notification.
- 10.2.16. The health facilities should embed a system for risk management which aims to support and enable staff to report incidents when things go wrong in a timely and transparent manner.
- 10.2.17. Risk identification and treatment approaches must be revised as needed to ensure early identification of risks in clinical services.
- 10.2.18. Risks should be analysed in order to improve safety and a proactive review must be undertaken annually.
- 10.2.19. Risk reports should be raised to the health facilities board of Directors or Governance for evaluation and decision.
- 10.3. Mortality & Morbidity Reviews:
 - 10.3.1. This part should be read in conjunction with the DHA Guidelines for the Management of Mortality and Morbidity in Health Facilities.
 - 10.3.2. Health facilities should form internal Mortality & Morbidity Committee.
 - 10.3.3. Committee is responsible to review and document the cases related to mortality and morbidity on monthly basis.
 - 10.3.4. Health facilities should submit the Mortality and Morbidity reports to the Medical Complaints Section in DHA within thirty- five (35) days from the date of death.





- a. All mortality reports shall comply with the requirements set out in the Guidelines for the Management of Mortality and Morbidity in Health Facilities..
- 10.4. Challenges of Clinical Governance
 - 10.4.1. Resource Constraints: Limited staff, funding, and time can hinder the implementation of clinical governance.
 - 10.4.2. Resistance to Change: Some professionals may resist changes to established practices.
 - 10.4.3. Complexity: Managing multiple components (e.g., audits, safety protocols) can be overwhelming.
 - 10.4.4. Data Management: Ensuring accurate and secure data collection and analysis.
 - 10.4.5. Cultural Barriers: Creating a culture of accountability and openness may take time in some organizations.

11. CHAPTER SEVEN: PATIENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVMENT

- 11.1. Improving the quality of care requires the involvement of patients and the public, especially in facilities with a high-risk rating scale. Their feedback is used to enhance services and establish a higher level of quality in the service delivery for patients and the public. This happens through different channels of feedback surveys, a well-constructed complaint monitoring and recording system, and basic patient feedback.
- 11.2. Patient and public involvement (PPI) is an essential component of effective clinical governance, helping healthcare organizations to understand and respond to the needs and





priorities of patients and the wider community. Here are some key requirements for achieving effective PPI within a clinical governance framework.

- 11.2.1. Clear objectives
 - a. Effective PPI requires clear objectives that are aligned with the goals of the organization and the needs of patients and the wider community.
 - b. Effective PPI requires the involvement of identifying specific areas of clinical care and services that require input from patients and the public and setting clear goals for PPI activities.
- 11.2.2. Inclusive processes
 - a. Effective PPI requires inclusive processes that enable a diverse range of patients and members of the public to participate in decision-making processes.
 - Effective PPI requires ensuring that that PPI activities are accessible and inclusive, and that they are designed to enable meaningful participation by all stakeholders.
- 11.2.3. Training and support
 - a. Effective PPI requires training and support for patients and members of the public who are involved in decision-making processes.
 - Effective PPI requires providing information about the purpose and objectives of PPI, as well as training in communication, decision-making, and other relevant skills.
- 11.2.4. Collaboration and partnership





- a. Effective PPI requires collaboration and partnership between healthcare organizations, patients, and members of the public.
- Effective PPI requires building relationships with patients and the wider community, and working together to identify areas for improvement and develop solutions to address them.
- 11.2.5. Accountability and transparency:
 - Effective PPI requires accountability and transparency in decision-making processes.
 - b. Effective PPI requires ensuring that patients and the wider community have access to information about the decisions that are being made, and that they are able to provide feedback and input into these decisions.
- 11.2.6. Evaluation and feedback
 - a. Effective PPI requires ongoing evaluation and feedback to ensure that PPI activities are achieving their objectives and meeting the needs of patients and the wider community.
 - Effective PPI requires monitoring and evaluating PPI activities, and using feedback to make improvements and refine processes as needed.
- 11.3. The heath facilities should ensure it creates an open, honest and transparent environment for patients and their caregivers.
- 11.4. Patients should be encouraged to ask and receive information they need to participate in decisions related to their health.





- 11.5. The health facilities should ensure patients are encouraged to voice their opinion, provide feedback or make a medical complaint, If necessary.
- 11.6. There should be a patient group established for regular feedback of services provided.

12. CHAPTER EIGHT: SELF ASSESSMENTS

- 12.1. Accompanying the self-assessments, are the frequent reports sent to DHA matched with inspection visits, which aims to maintain the high quality of care delivered. Health facilities should be committed on meeting and reviewing their practices to ensure all systems are functioning properly and efficiently.
- 12.2. The health facilities should identify, emphasize and ensure management of risk emerging from services provided.
- 12.3. The health facility should establish the responsibility of protecting the health, safety and trust of its employees.
- 12.4. The health facility should ensure the effective and efficient use of resources through evidence- based clinical practice.
- 12.5. In instances where health facilities have a self-assessment tool, this should be declared and reported to DHA.





REFERENCES

1. Halligan, A. and Donaldson, L. (2001) Implementing clinical governance: Turning vision into reality, BMJ. Available online at:

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC1120478/

- Western Governors University (2021) Importance of clinical governance, Western Governors University. Available online at: <u>https://www.wgu.edu/blog/importance-clinical-governance2111.html</u>
- 3. National Model Clinical Governance Framework, Australian Commission on Safety and Quality in Health Care, Available online at: <u>https://www.safetyandquality.gov.au/our-</u> <u>work/clinical-governance/national-model-clinical-governance-framework</u>
- 4. Guidance Clinical Governance, GOV.UK, Public Health, England, 2021. Available online at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/newborn-hearing-screening-programme-nhsp-operational-guidance/4-clinical-governance
- Clinical Governance Standard, Public Review, Health Standards Organization, Canada, 2021.
 Available online at: <u>https://healthstandards.org/public-reviews/clinical-governance</u>
- 6. Sengkang General Hospital Clinical Governance Safety, Quality, Standards, clinical outcomes, clinical governance. Available online at: <u>https://www.skh.com.sg/about-</u>

us/clinical-outcomes/clinical-governance

7. The Israel National Institute for Health Policy Research, Governing Hospitals, International Workshop Report, Shlomo Mor-Yosef, 2011. Available online at:

http://www.israelhpr.org.il/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/Governing-Hospitals.pdf





 'East African Scholars Journal of Medical Sciences' ,2017. challenges in Implementing Clinical Governance. doi:10.36349/easms. Available online at:

https://www.ajol.info/index.php/eamj

9. The BMJ,2005.What is Clinical Governance?, UK. Available online at:

https://www.bmj.com/content/330/7506/s254.3

10. Clinical governance strategy, NHS Foundation Trust, UK 2022. Available online at:

https://www.dbth.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/Clinical-Gov-Strategy.pdf

- 11. Ashley, L., Armitage, G., Neary, M. and Hollingsworth, G., 2010. A practical guide to failure mode and effects analysis in health care: making the most of the team and its meetings. *The Joint Commission Journal on Quality and Patient Safety*, 36(8), pp.351-358. Available online at: <u>https://www.jointcommissionjournal.com/article/S1553-</u> <u>7250%2810%2936053-3/pdf</u>
- 12. Survey Analysis for Evaluating Risk (SAFER) Matrix ,Available online at :

https://www.jointcommissioninternational.org/resources/customer-service/frequentlyasked-questions/survey-analysis-for-evaluating-risk-matrix-faqs/

13. Failure Modes and Effects Analysis (FMEA) Tool, Available online at:

https://www.ihi.org/resources/Pages/Tools/FailureModesandEffectsAnalysisTool.asp

14. Federal Law by decree No. (4) of 2016 Concerning Medical Liability. Available at:

https://mohap.gov.ae/assets/c0ff95b5/Federal%20Decree-

Law%20No.%204%20of%202016%20on%20Medical%20Liability_6379105471305





15. Cabinet Decision No. (33) of 2009. Issuing the Implementing Regulation of Federal Law No.

(10) of 2008 Concerning Medical Liability. Available at:

https://www.doh.gov.ae/-/media/5459FA9F5C68430EBF25AD9B54D04F9C.ashx

- 16. Federal Law No. (7) of 1975. Concerning the Practice of Human Medicine.
- 17. DHA,2019 Clinical Governance Policy.
- 18. DHA,2022 Sentinel Events Notification and Management Policy.
- 19. DHA, 2022 Guidelines for the Management of Mortality and Morbidity in Health Facilities.
- 20. Local Law No. (6) of 2018 concerning Dubai Health Authority (Dubai). Available at:

https://www.dha.gov.ae/en/LawsRegulations/Pages/LocalLaws.aspx

21. Local Law No. (14) of 2021 on amending the local law no. (6) of 2018 concerning the Dubai

Health Authority (Dubai). Available online at:

https://dlp.dubai.gov.ae/Legislation%20Reference/2021/Law%20No.%20(14)%20of%2

02021%20Amending%20Law%20No.%20(6)%20of%202018.pdf

22. Gray, C. (2005) 'What is clinical governance?', BMJ Career Focus, 330(7506), pp. s254.

Available online at: https://doi.org/10.1136/bmj.330.7506.s254-b